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�Supreme Court holds stipulated forfeit�ure in plea agreement waived right to special jury verdict. (545) Defendant pled guilty to engaging in a continuing criminal enterprise in violation of 12 U.S.C. §848 and agreed to forfeit “all of his assets” to the government. The Supreme Court held that the right to a special jury verdict on forfeiture in Fed. R. Crim. P. 31(e) was waived by the guilty plea. Likewise, the district court was not required under Rule 11(f) to advise the defendant of his right to a special verdict under Rule 31, nor was the district court obliged to obtain from the defendant an express waiver of that right. Libretti v. U.S., 516 U.S. 29, 116 S.Ct. 356 (1995).�xe "Libretti v. U.S., 516 U.S. 29, 116 S.Ct. 356 (1995)."�





Supreme Court says Rule 11 does not require factual basis for stipulated asset forfeiture in plea agreement. (545) Defendant pled guilty to engaging in a continuing criminal enterprise in violation of 21 U.S.C. §848 and agreed to forfeit “all of his assets” to the government. In an opinion by Justice O’Connor, the Supreme Court held that Fed. R. Crim. P. 11(f) does not require the district court to determine whether a factual basis exists for concluding that the assets the defendant has agreed to forfeit are forfeitable property under the applicable criminal forfeiture statutes. The court reasoned that forfeiture is an element of the sentence imposed following conviction by trial or plea of guilty and thus falls outside the scope of Rule 11(f). Justice Stevens dissented on the ground that only property with a requisite nexus to the crime of conviction may be forfeited as part of a criminal sentence; accepting a stipulated forfeiture without a factual basis would allow the defendant to agree to an illegal sentence. Justice O’Connor’s majority opinion leaves open the question of a district court obligation, independent of Rule 11, “to inquire into the propriety of a stipulated asset forfeiture embodied in a plea agreement.” Libretti v. U.S., 516 U.S. 29, 116 S.Ct. 356 (1995).�xe "Libretti v. U.S., 516 U.S. 29, 116 S.Ct. 356 (1995)."�





1st Circuit upholds fine designed to fill gap between value of for�feited assets and plea agree�ment amount. (545) In a plea agreement, defendant agreed to forfeit prop�erty with a total value of $2.8 million. In a sepa�rate agreement, he listed several assets to for�feit, in�cluding some condominiums owned by a cor�poration in which he had a 50 percent interest. The district court imposed a $634,000 fine, making it clear that its ob�jective was to fill the gap between the value of the assets forfeited and $2.8 million plea agree�ment ceiling. The 1st Circuit affirmed, despite defendant's dispute as to the valua�tion of certain for�feited assets and the gov�ernment's refusal to accept the listed con�dominiums for forfeiture. The court was not legally required to limit its fine to the size of the gap, and thus was not required to mea�sure the gap precisely. The agreement pro�vided that assets would sat�isfy the forfeiture obli�gation only if the assets were without any encum�brances. Defendant's asso�ciate had filed a petition objecting to the for�feit�ure of the condos, claiming a 50 percent interest in them. The district court could properly con�strue this petition as an encum�brance. U.S. v. Maling, 988 F.2d 242 (1st Cir. 1993).�xe "U.S. v. Maling, 988 F.2d 242 (1st Cir. 1993)."�





1st Circuit holds plea agreement imposed ceiling on ag�gregate amount of forfeiture plus fines. (545) Defendants' plea agreement pro�vided that, in lieu of a crimi�nal fine, they would forfeit assets worth $2.8 million. In re�turn, the government agreed "not to recommend the imposi�tion of any fines." Nevertheless, the district court ruled that the plea agreement permitted it to impose fines on all four defen�dants totaling $525,000. The 1st Circuit up�held the district court's discretion to impose the fine. The ap�pellate court rejected the claim that the government breached the plea agreement by failing to rec�ommend against a fine, rul�ing that agreement permitted the gov�ernment to remain silent. However, the court agreed that the plea agreement imposed a $2.8 million ceiling on the total amount of fines plus forfeiture. Since the plea agreement specified that the promise to forfeit $2.8 million was "in lieu of a criminal fine," the imposition of a fine relieved the defendants of their promise to forfeit, "dollar for dollar." U.S. v. Maling, 942 F.2d 808 (1st Cir. 1991).�xe "U.S. v. Maling, 942 F.2d 808 (1st Cir. 1991)."�





2nd Circuit holds that judge need not inform the defen�dant that his property might be for�feited before accept�ing a guilty plea. (545) Defendant argued that due pro�cess barred the government from bringing a forfeiture action against him. He claimed the district attorney never told him during plea negotiations that the state agencies that prose�cuted him in�tended to seek forfeiture and the judge who ac�cepted his guilty plea never advised him of the possibility of forfeiture. The 2nd Circuit re�jected this ar�gument, holding that "since the forfeiture was not a nec�essary consequence of [defen�dant's] guilty plea, there was no re�quirement that [defendant] be in�formed that it might someday occur. The court noted that even if de�fendant "had chosen not to plead guilty and had been ac�quitted after trial, the money could still have been the subject of a forfeiture action." U.S. v. U.S. Cur�rency in the Amount of $228,536.00, 895 F.2d 908 (2d Cir. 1990).�xe "U.S. v. U.S. Cur�rency in the Amount of $228,536.00, 895 F.2d 908 (2d Cir. 1990)."�





4th Circuit holds that government committed plain error when it failed to dismiss Count II of indictment authorizing criminal forfeiture of two automobiles, where defendant’s plea agreement included the dismissal of that count. (545) Defendant pleaded guilty to conspiring to distribute one kilogram of cocaine and was sentenced to 240 months’ imprisonment. On appeal, he argued that the government’s failure to dismiss Count II of his indictment authorizing the criminal forfeiture of two automobiles constituted a breach of his plea agreement that entitled him to withdraw his plea. The 4th Circuit found that the government’s concession of at least technical error in failing to move for the dismissal of Count II constituted plain error, affecting the fairness, integrity, or public reputation of judicial proceedings. The 11th Circuit remanded to the district court for further proceedings to determine the proper remedy. U.S. v. Bullock, 2001 WL 1240848 (4th Cir. 2001) (unpublished).





5th Circuit holds that Rule 11 requirement of fac�tual basis for plea does not apply to forfeitures. (545) Defendant's plea agree�ment provided for the for�feiture of certain property. He contended that Rule 11(f)'s re�quirement of an adequate factual basis for a guilty plea applies equally to forfeiture or�ders, and that the government failed to estab�lish an ade�quate factual basis for the forfei�ture. The 5th Circuit held that Rule 11's re�quirement does not apply to an order of forfei�ture. Instead, it would uphold a forfei�ture order, "if the entire record which was be�fore the court provided a fac�tual basis for the forfeiture." There was such a factual basis here. The indictment alleged that all of the prop�erties listed were acquired or maintained through de�fendant's racketeering ac�tivities, and listed how the properties were derived from the proceeds of those ac�tivities. The plea agreement listed all of the properties that defendant agreed to forfeit. At the plea hearing, de�fendant ac�knowledged that he un�derstood that all of the prop�erty listed in the plea agreement was subject to forfei�ture. U.S. v. Bachyn�sky, 949 F.2d 722 (5th Cir. 1991).�xe "U.S. v. Bachyn�sky, 949 F.2d 722 (5th Cir. 1991)."�





6th Circuit grants specific performance of plea agreement to government. (545) As part of the plea agreement, defendant agreed to the forfeiture of certain property. While the district court expressed some concern about the propriety of the forfeiture, it did not expressly accept or reject the plea agreement, and ultimately accepted defendant's plea. However, the court refused to order forfeiture of the property. On appeal, the 6th Circuit reversed. Because the agreement included the govern�ment's promise not to bring addi�tional charges against the defendant, Federal Rule of Criminal Procedure 11 required that the court either accept the recommendation or reject it and give the defendant an oppor�tunity to withdraw his plea. Ambiguity in the district court's conduct will be construed as acceptance of the agreement, even when the failure to follow the agreement benefits the defendant. U.S. v. Skidmore, 998 F.2d 372 (6th Cir. 1993). �xe "U.S. v. Skidmore, 998 F.2d 372 (6th Cir. 1993). "�





7th Circuit finds federal government not barred from civil forfeiture by state plea agreement. (545) Claim�ants were prosecuted by state authorities after a search disclosed the marijuana grow operation in the basement of their home. They pleaded guilty to state charges pursuant to an agreement that did not include a forfeiture provision. Thereafter, federal authorities filed a civil forfeiture action against the home. Claimants contended that because a DEA agent had assisted in the state investigation and may have been privy to the provisions of the state plea agreement, the federal government had, in effect, “adopted” the state case and agreed by implication not to seek the additional sanction of forfeiture. The Seventh Circuit disagreed. There was no proof that any federal decision-maker knew of the terms of the state agreement in advance, much less encouraged or ratified it. There was no promise by state authorities that claimants would not be subject to later forfeiture, much less any corresponding promise from a federal official. Accordingly, claimants’ due process argument failed. U.S. v. One Parcel of Real Estate Located at 25 Sandra Court, Sandwich, Illinois, 135 F.3d 462 (7th Cir. 1998).�xe "U.S. v. One Parcel of Real Estate Located at 25 Sandra Court, Sandwich, Illinois, 135 F.3d 462 (7th Cir. 1998)."�





7th Circuit finds no breach of plea agreement in govern�ment's delay in deliver�ing forfeited cattle. (545) Defen�dant's plea agreement pro�vided for the de�livery of 21 head of forfeited cattle to defendant's daughters. The cattle were to be delivered to the daughters shortly after sentencing. While 19 of the cattle were delivered promptly, the remaining two were not delivered until seven months af�ter sen�tencing. The 7th Circuit rejected defendant's claim that this delay was a breach of the plea agreement. The plea agreement provided that the cattle were forfeited to the gov�ernment. The gov�ernment had a statutory obligation ac�knowledged in the plea agree�ment to protect third-party in�terests and claims with re�spect to the forfeited assets. As such, the government de�layed delivery of the two cows pending res�olution of claims filed by lienholders under §853(n). The delay in deliv�ery of the cows until after the resolution of these claims was consistent with the parallel obligations placed upon the gov�ernment. Marx v. U.S., 930 F.2d 1246 (7th Cir. 1991).�xe "Marx v. U.S., 930 F.2d 1246 (7th Cir. 1991)."�





7th Circuit holds plea agreement did not re�quire govern�ment to deliver forfeited proper�ty free of encum�brances. (545) Defen�dant's plea agreement provided for the forfeiture, sale and disposition of his business and farm as�sets, in�cluding the delivery of 21 head of forfeited cat�tle to defendant's daughters. Defendant claimed that because the plea agreement had a clause requiring the payment of all lia�bilities and encumbrances of his farm with proceeds from the sale of forfeited farm assets, the gov�ernment was required to pay the encum�brances on the cattle delivered to his daugh�ters. The 7th Circuit rejected this interpreta�tion of the plea agreement. The plea agree�ment provided that the proceeds from the sale of assets were to be used to satisfy the encum�brances on the assets being disposed of by sale. The encum�brances on the assets being dis�tributed in kind did not need to be satisfied. Marx v. U.S., 930 F.2d 1246 (7th Cir. 1991).�xe "Marx v. U.S., 930 F.2d 1246 (7th Cir. 1991)."�





7th Circuit rejects Federal Tort Claims Act claim for return of forfeited money despite claim of breach of plea agreement. (545) About $16,000 allegedly belonging to claimant was administratively forfeited by the DEA. Claimant did not contest the forfeiture but submitted a re�quest for remission, which the DEA de�nied. Claimant was also indicted for drug crimes, and the indictment sought forfei�ture of various other prop�erties and monies. Pursuant to a plea agreement, claimant agreed to the forfeiture of his residence and the pros�ecution agreed to dismiss all other portions of the indictment seeking forfeiture. Claimant con�tinued to seek the return of the $16,000, bringing a suit under the Federal Tort Claims Act. The 7th Circuit affirmed the district court's dismissal of the suit for want of jurisdic�tion. The FTCA applies only to torts, and claimant's as�sertions did not amount to a tort under state law. An er�roneous admin�istrative decision is not a tort. To the extent his claim was based upon a breach of the plea agree�ment, the claim was a contract claim. To the ex�tent claimant was contending the prosecution made mis�representations in connection with the plea agreement, then the claim was ex�cluded by §2680(h) of the FTCA. Paul v. U.S., 929 F.2d 503 (7th Cir. 1991).�xe "Paul v. U.S., 929 F.2d 503 (7th Cir. 1991)."� 





8th Circuit says mere filing of forfeiture complaint did not violate plea agreement. (545) In 1986 defendant pled guilty to drug charges. His plea agreement provided that the government would not forfeit defendant's residence. In 1991, defendant was arrested on new drug charges. In 1992, the govern�ment filed a forfeiture complaint against defendant's residence, pointing to both the 1986 seizure of co�caine and money from defendant's home, and the 1991 seizure of drugs and money from his home. Defendant claimed that this breached the plea agree�ment. The 8th Circuit held that the mere filing of the forfeiture complaint did not violate the plea agree�ment. The court agreed with defendant that the gov�ernment could not use his 1986 conduct as a basis for forfeiture of the house. However, at this stage of the forfeiture proceedings, defendant could not show that probable cause depended on the 1986 conduct. The reference in the complaint to the 1986 conduct was merely background informa�tion. U.S. v. Deaton, 13 F.3d 270 (8th Cir. 1993).�xe "U.S. v. Deaton, 13 F.3d 270 (8th Cir. 1993)."�





8th Circuit concludes that plea agreement barring future proceedings against defen�dants did not bar forfeiture. (545) Defen�dants' plea agreement provided that the gov�ernment would not initiate future proceedings against the defendants for any crimes which were within the scope of the investigation and indictment in their drug case. The 8th Cir�cuit held that a forfeiture proceeding is not a proceeding against a defendant, but against property, and therefore the instant forfeiture proceeding was not barred by the plea agreement. Judge Beam dissented, believing that the government's actions indicated that it also believed that forfeiture actions were barred by the plea agreement. U.S. v. One Parcel of Real Property, 999 F.2d 1264 (8th Cir. 1993). �xe "U.S. v. One Parcel of Real Property, 999 F.2d 1264 (8th Cir. 1993). "�





10th Circuit holds for state officer in Section 1983 action brought by Joseph Libretti challenging a $19,000 forfeiture. (545) In 1992, Joseph Libretti entered into a plea agreement in which he forfeited to the Wyoming state Division of Criminal Investigation his interest in $1,500,000 in exchange for a lighter sentence for his conviction of engaging in a continuing criminal enterprise. His brother voluntarily disavowed any interest and turned over $19,000 to the DCI in 1992, and he returned some other money to Libretti.  The district court granted summary judgment in favor of the state attorney general, holding that Libretti gave up in his plea agreement his rights to the $19,000 when his brother surrendered the money to DCI. On appeal, Libretti argued that because the $19,000 was not itemized in the criminal forfeiture order against him, he did not forfeit that amount. The Tenth Circuit found that the plea agreement covered more than the items listed in the subsequent order of criminal forfeiture. The plea agreement stated that Libretti relinquished any right to all funds related to his drug transactions up to $1.5 million, no matter when the transaction occurred or who possessed the funds, and no matter whether they were listed in future or previous forfeiture orders. Affirmed. Libretti v. Wyoming Attorney General, 2003 WL 356786 (10th Cir. 2003).


10th Circuit says plea agreement waived double jeopardy challenge to criminal con�vic�tion and forfeiture. (545) A grand jury indicted defendant on drug charges. The FBI then entered three decrees of forfeiture with respect to property seized from defendant. Defendant never filed a claim to the property. Instead, he entered a written plea agreement in which he pled guilty to two counts and consented to the administrative forfeitures. Defendant then appealed his conviction, arguing that the administrative forfeiture of his property and the subsequent criminal conviction violated the double jeopardy clause. The Tenth Circuit held that defendant waived any objection to the two proceedings against him in his plea agreement. Double jeopardy rights may be waived by agreement, if the substance of the agreement allows double prosecution. The fact that defendant was not specifically advised by counsel of his double jeopardy rights at the time he entered the plea agreement did not defeat the waiver. U.S. v. Cordoba, 71 F.3d 1543 (10th Cir. 1995).�xe "U.S. v. Cordoba, 71 F.3d 1543 (10th Cir. 1995)."�





10th Circuit says judge need not determine factual basis for criminal forfeiture under plea agreement. (545) Defendant agreed in his plea agreement to plead guilty to a CCE count and to forfeit all of his assets. He argued that the district court erred in not determining under Rule 11(f) whether there was a factual basis for the forfeiture of his assets. The 10th Circuit, agreeing with the 11th Circuit, and disagreeing with the 4th and 7th Circuits, held that Rule 11(f) does not require a judge to determine whether there is a factual basis for a defendant's agreement to forfeit his assets pursuant to a plea agreement. A criminal forfeiture under §853 is part of the sentence, not a part of the substantive offense. Moreover, a lawful plea agreement is enforceable. U.S. v. Libretti, 38 F.3d 523 (10th Cir. 1994), aff'd, Libretti v. U.S., 516 U.S. 29 (1995).�xe "U.S. v. Libretti, 38 F.3d 523 (10th Cir. 1994), aff'd, Libretti v. U.S., 516 U.S. 29 (1995)."�





10th Circuit holds that acceptance of for�feiture stipulation did not violate Fed. R. Crim. P. 11. (545) At the district court's sug�gestion, de�fendant agreed to stipulate to for�feiture of certain items if the jury re�turned guilty verdicts on cer�tain counts. On appeal, defendant argued for the first time that the court violated Fed. R. Crim. P. 11 by failing to address him directly before accepting the stipulation to ensure that he un�derstood the nature of the accusation, that the stipulation was entered into voluntarily, and that there was a factual ba�sis for the forfeiture. The 10th Circuit found no plain error or violation of due process. The stipu�lation was not a guilty plea. This was a case where both par�ties gam�bled on the out�come of the trial and defendant lost. Moreover, the district court took great care to ensure that defen�dant, through his trial counsel, understood the na�ture of the stipulation. Defendant was pre�sent in court and represented by counsel during all of the discussions surrounding the stipulation. U.S. v. Herndon, 982 F.2d 1411 (10th Cir. 1992).�xe "U.S. v. Herndon, 982 F.2d 1411 (10th Cir. 1992)."�





10th Circuit holds state's failure to inform de�fendant of possible forfeiture proceeding did not render plea involun�tary. (545) Several months prior to pleading guilty in Oklahoma state court on drug charges, the state entered a judgment in civil forfeiture proceedings against money seized from defendant at the time of his arrest. On appeal from a district court's denial of his petition for habeas corpus, de�fendant ar�gued that the forfeiture proceeding constituted an additional punish�ment which was not in�cluded in his plea agreement, and that the state's failure to inform him of the proceeding or to include it in plea agreement rendered his guilty plea unknowing and involuntary. The 10th Circuit re�jected this contention, finding that the possibility of a civil forfeiture pro�ceeding was a collateral consequence of defen�dant's guilty plea. Thus, the court was under no affirmative obligation to advise him that a guilty plea could possibly lead to a civil forfei�ture. There was nothing preventing defendant from requesting that his plea agreement set forth the dispo�sition of the seized as�sets. Harris v. Allen, 929 F.2d 560 (10th Cir. 1991).�xe "Harris v. Allen, 929 F.2d 560 (10th Cir. 1991)."�





11th Circuit holds that Rule 11 does not apply to a forfeiture provision in a plea agreement. (545) Defendant agreed as part of his plea agreement to forfeit under 21 U.S.C. §853(a) the sum of $50,000. He claimed that Fed. R. Crim. P. 11(f) re�quires the trial court to de�termine that there is a fac�tual basis to support the forfeiture as part of the plea. The 11th Circuit rejected this argument, holding that Rule 11 does not apply to a forfeiture provision in a plea agreement. The language of §853(a) indi�cates that forfeiture is a con�sequence of a defendant's drug activity rather than a deter�mination of his cul�pability. Thus, a forfeiture provision in a plea agreement is not a plea to a sub�stantive charge, but a sanction to which the parties agree as a result of the de�fendant's plea. Because Rule 11(f) is applicable only to guilty pleas, a sen�tencing judge is not re�quired under Rule 11 to determine whether there is a fac�tual basis for a defendant's con�cession to a crimi�nal forfeiture pursuant to his plea bargain. U.S. v. Boatner, 966 F.2d 1575 (11th Cir. 1992).�xe "U.S. v. Boatner, 966 F.2d 1575 (11th Cir. 1992)."�





11th Circuit remands forfeiture case for dis�trict court to de�termine whether use of claimant's statements vio�lated plea agree�ment. (545) Defendant's plea agreement stated that defendant's statements would not be used against him, either directly or indirectly. De�fendant tes�tified as a gov�ernment witness that he and his partner bought several properties with the proceeds of illegal transactions, in�cluding certain property which was al�ready the subject of a forfeiture proceeding. Following the trial, defendant was deposed in the forfei�ture pro�ceeding and again admitted that the prop�erty was pur�chased with drug proceeds. Over defendant's objections, the deposition was admitted into evidence at the forfei�ture trial. Defendant argued that the use of his deposi�tion testimony violated the plea agree�ment. The 11th Circuit found that the plea agreement was ambiguous, and re�manded the case to determine whether the plea agreement allowed defendant's statements to be used against him in the forfeiture action. U.S. v. One Parcel of Real Estate at 136 Plantation Drive, 911 F.2d 1525 (11th Cir. 1990).�xe "U.S. v. One Parcel of Real Estate at 136 Plantation Drive, 911 F.2d 1525 (11th Cir. 1990)."�





Federal Claims Court has jurisdiction over challenge to government’s sale of forfeited assets. (545) Defendant pleaded guilty to RICO violations and agreed to forfeit $1,000,000. By plea agreement, he surrender�ed to the govern�ment specified property which was to be sold and the proceeds applied to the forfeiture obligation. When the property fetched less than $1 million and the government sought to collect the outstanding balance, defendant sued claiming that the government breached an obligation of good faith in liquidating the property at far less than its market value. The district court found the defendant had no standing to assert an interest in the property itself or to contest the final order of forfeiture; however, he would have standing to sue the government for breach of its contractual obligations under the plea agreement. Nonetheless, any such suit would have to be brought in the Federal Court of Claims, rather than the district court, because defendant’s requested remedy was an award of money damages. U.S. v. Zinner, 1998 WL 437270 (E.D. Pa. 1998) (not reported in F.Supp.).


